ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 1, 2007
1:08 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Ral ph Saruel s

Representati ve Max G uenberg

Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 25

“"An Act relating to |andowners' immunity for allowi ng use of
land without charge for a recreational activity;, relating to
| andowners' liability where [|andowner conduct involves gross

negligence or reckless or intentional msconduct; relating to
claims of adverse possession and prescriptive easenents, or
simlar clains; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 7
"An Act relating to false caller identification."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 25

SHORT TI TLE: RECREATI ONAL LAND USE LI ABI LI TY/ ADV. PGSS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON, W LSON

01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) RES, JUD

01/ 24/ 07 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

01/ 24/ 07 (H Moved Qut of Committee

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 1, 2007



01/ 24/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

01/ 25/ 07 (H RES RPT 8DP

01/ 25/ 07 (H DP; GUTTENBERG, EDGVON, SEATON,
KAWASAKI , W LSON, ROSES, JOHNSON, GATTO

01/ 31/ 07 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 31/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 07 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 01/ 07 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB

SHORT TI TLE: FALSE CALLER | DENTI FI CATI ON

SPONSCOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN, GARDNER

01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07
01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H JUD

01/ 22/ 07 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
01/ 22/ 07 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
01/ 24/ 07 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
01/ 24/ 07 (H Heard & Held

01/ 24/ 07 (H M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 31/ 07 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
01/ 31/ 07 (H Heard & Held

01/ 31/ 07 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 01/ 07 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a prine sponsor of HB 25.

DI RK MOFFATT, Staff

to Representative Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 7 on behalf of Representative
Lynn, one of the bills” prinme sponsors.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General

Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal Division

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions and offered coments
during hearing on HB 7.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 1, 2007



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R JAY RAMRAS called the House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee
nmeeting to order at 1:08:08 PM Representatives Lynn, Hol nes,
Gruenberg, Dahlstrom Coghill, and Ranras were present at the
call to order. Representative Sanmuels arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 25- RECREATI ONAL LAND USE LI ABI LI TY/ ADV. PGSS

1: 09: 06 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 25, "An Act relating to |landowners' inmunity for
al l owi ng use of land wi thout charge for a recreational activity;
relating to [|andowners’ l[tability where [|andowner conduct
i nvol ves gross negligence or reckless or intentional msconduct;
relating to clains of adverse possession and prescriptive
easenents, or simlar clains; and providing for an effective
date. "

1: 09: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, Al aska State Legislature, speaking
as a joint prinme sponsor of HB 25, offered his hope that his
menor andum dated February 1, 2007 addressed questions raised at
the previous commttee hearing. He pointed out that Legislative
Legal and Research Services has stated that to include
trespassing provisions would “conplicate the bill.” He
requested that the aforenentioned provisions be included in a
di fferent piece of |egislation.

CHAIR RAMRAS comented that a lack of “no trespassing” signs
offers broader access to land that mght not be wutilized
ot herw se, and noted his reluctance to wal k across property that
says “no trespassing.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON concurred, adding that the whole purpose
of HB 25 is to provide |andowners with nore security, along with
a basic understanding that if free public access to privately
owned land is allowed, the Iandowner wll not be sued for
negl i gence.

CHAIR RAMRAS offered his understanding that his business would

be covered under HB 25 because it has a privately owned boat
dock which the public is allowed to use. He noted that there

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 1, 2007



are no “no trespassing” signs posted, adding that he would be
di sappointed if his business was sued as a result of providing
free access for recreational purposes. He therefore asked to be
excused fromvoting on this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN and REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected; thus
requiring Chair Ranras to vote.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to a question from Chair

Ranr as, explained that ~currently, if an individual owns
“uni nproved land,” the sanme protections apply. He stated that
the definition of “inproved” versus “uninproved” has been

determ ned different ways for different court cases.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES, referring to Section 1(a), requested
clarification as to the nmeaning of “indirectly allow”

1:13: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that originally, the bil
required “oral or witten permssion.” He explained that this
was too restrictive for the situations that occur across the
state. Legi slative Legal and Research Services, he said, cane

up with the current |anguage as a way to address areas where a
person is not available to give “oral or witten permssion,”
such as hiking and ski trails.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES questioned at what point a person would be
“indirectly allow ng” trespassing.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON surmised that this is specific to each
case. He stated that he is able to explain the intent of the
| aw; however, a judge would |ook at the specific fact and case
findings in order to decide this.

1:16: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES offered her understanding that an
i ndi vidual who does not attenpt to post “no trespassing” signs
or sinply doesn’'t care is covered, while all others are a
separate issue.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether land wthout a strict
prohi bition my be used without any notification.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 1, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that the bill doesn't
address this. He explained that this bill sinply addresses the
| andowner’s duty of care. Referring to information included in
nmenbers’ packets, he pointed out that many other states have

passed simlar |egislation. G oss negligence and intentional
m sconduct are not all owed. He said “There’s nothing in here
that is saying that anyone has a right to use your |[and. It

just says that if soneone is using your land with your indirect
or direct perm ssion, your duty is not to go out and Sheppard
them around and nmeke sure they don’t get hurt. ... On sinple
negligence, it's their responsibility.”

1:18: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opi ned that once this type of |anguage is
in statute, it beconmes a barrier

[ Following was brief introduction by participants of the Junior
Al aska Close Up program from North Pole, Al aska, and Hoonah,
Al aska. |

1:21:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understanding that “direct
and indirect” is a term of art used in regard to “contenpt of
court,” and is not used in torte |aw He expressed concern

regarding this phrase, and surmsed that |awers and judges
woul d not understand the intent behind it. He suggested that an
alternate phrase be considered, such as “explicitly or
inplicitly allows a recreational activity.” He gave a brief
interpretation of the aforenentioned phrase.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that he is not sure that the
af orenentioned terns are appropriate.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES suggested adding the phrase "a | andowner
who does not prohibit recreational activity.” She opined that
this would include a situation in which a |andowner is unaware
that the land is being utilized for recreational purposes, who
has not posted any signs prohibiting such activity.

1:25:01 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that this |anguage

woul d change the dynamics of the bill. The intent is not to
allow use of private land unless prohibited, but rather to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 1, 2007



elimnate the sinple negligence standard, if the use is directly
or indirectly all owed.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM commented that Legislative Legal and
Research Services advised that this |anguage be used, and
offered her belief that changing this |anguage woul d change the
intent of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE COCHI LL sai d:

That was the point of trying to get it on the record.

Because, if ever it does go to court, one of the
things they ... try to do ... is figure out: What was
the intention? And if ... we're going to put a strict
prohibition, that if somebody prohibits [use of |and],
and give this liability, | am fearful that then, we
say “all comers on ny property, wunless | strictly
prohibit.” And | don’t know that we want to start
down that road. However, if you ve allowed certain
accesses on your land ... | would hate to think that

soneone felt that they had a right to that piece of
property, just because you allowed certain things. I
am concerned about that.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES agreed with this concern. She reiterated
an earlier statenent that this does not give permission to use
private |and. She stated that this broadens the |andowner
protections. In response to a question from Chair Ranras, she
restated and explained her earlier suggestion to replace
“directly or indirectly allows” with “does not prohibit.”

1: 29: 56 PM

CHAIR RAMRAS said that he is unconfortable with this |anguage
In regard to “explicit or inplicit,” he stated that he does not
find this “superior” to the |anguage drafted by Legislative
Legal and Research Services. As a |layperson, he said, he finds
the current | anguage to be clearer.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG comented that an individual who is
“prohibited” is not given many rights. He opined that only
t hose who are not trespassers are given rights.

1:32:45 PM

[Chair Ranras turned the gavel over to Vice Chair Dahl strom]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 1, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, continuing on, stated that if a person
is not trespassing, he or she may sue. The question, he said,
is in regard to the standard of negligence that nust be shown.
He has not seen any exanples of a “sinple negligence standard.”
He opined that HB 25 sinply raises the “sinple negligence
standard” to a “gross negligence standard.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that “trespass” neans that an
i ndi vi dual *“knowi ngly remained on the prem ses after personally
being ordered to |eave, and recklessly disregarded the | aw ul
order that [he or she] not remain. The bill is intended to
apply to landowers who allow free recreational use of private
| and. He added that this does not elimnate negligence for any
ot her situations.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that, if passed, this
| egislation would be used as the basis of jury instruction.
Therefore, it must be easily understood.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:37 p.m to 1:38 p. m
1:37:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated that the |anguage nust be
“clear and easily understood.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES commented that “a | andowner that does not
prohi bit” broadens the statute beyond the sponsor’s original
i ntent.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG commented that the term “allow’ is a
“good term” He surmsed that a person may allow sonething
wi t hout verbal perm ssion, and added that the goal is to find a
termwhich clearly states this.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that a Legislative Legal and
Research Services drafter come before the commttee to address
the aforenmentioned concerns, as well as the Departnment of Law

(DAL) . He stated that, generally, the intention of governnent
is to prohibit activities. He pointed out that in HB 25, the
| anguage in the body of the bill is “negative,” while the
| anguage in the enabling paragraph is not. He said “I think

before we start wandering off into how we have a positive
statenment in a negative manner, we want to take a look at that.”

1:41: 11 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 1, 2007



VI CE CHAIR DAHLSTROM suggested that the bill be brought before
the commttee at the next hearing, allowing time for the
sponsor(s) to neet with Legislative Legal and Research Servi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed wth this. He explained that
“directly or indirectly” was left in the bill to allow for case-
by- case consi derati on.

VI CE CHAI R DAHLSTROM suggested that any additional questions be
submitted in witing to Chair Ranras and Representative Seaton

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that adding a definition of
“directly or indirectly” to the bill would be hel pful.

[ HB 25 was hel d over. ]

HB 7-FALSE CALLER | DENTI FI CATI ON

1: 43: 20 PM

VI CE CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the final order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 7, "An Act relating to false caller
identification."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, speaking as a prinme sponsor of HB 7, noted
that a conceptual anendnent would be offered in an effort to
address concerns brought up at a previous comm ttee hearing.

1:44:18 PM

DI RK MOFFATT, staff to Representative Bob Lynn, Alaska State
Legislature, one of the bills’ prine sponsors, explained that
the conceptual anendnent before the conmttee was intended to
address multiple caller identification offenses. A person who
exceeds five offenses is guilty of a class A m sdeneanor. If a
person enters fal se i nformation into a system which
automatically calls thousands of people, each display would
count as one offence. If this information is entered into an
i ndividual call system the sane rule would apply. Each displ ay
on the caller ID screen would be considered a separate act,
regardl ess of whether or not the information is the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL inquired as to the difference between a
cl ass A m sdemeanor and a class B m sdeneanor.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 1, 2007



MR. MOFFATT explained that a “class A msdeneanor” carries a
sentence of wup to one year in prison, while a “class B
m sdemeanor” carries a three nonth sentence.

1:47:16 PM

VI CE CHAI R DAHLSTROM questioned whether Representative Sanuels
had seen conceptual anmendnent 5.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked that the bill be held over, in
order to give Legislative Legal and Research Services tine to
i ncorporate any conceptual amendnents that may be adopted, thus
allowing the commttee to “look at it in context.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN agreed that this would be a good i dea.
1:49: 12 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Services
Section-Juneau, Crimnal D vision, Departnent of Law (DQ.),
expressed concern with the addition of “intent to defraud or
cause harm” She stated that “intent to defraud” is defined in
[AS 11.46.990]; however “cause harni is unclear. She offered
her understanding that this is used in federal |aw, although it
is not a termused in state crimnal |aw. She recommended the
removal of this |anguage, as “intent to defraud” is broadly
defined and would nost |ikely cover the instances in question.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that the aforenentioned statute
shoul d be referenced in HB 7.

M5. CARPENETI agreed. In regard to the penalty, she suggested
that in Section 2(c), language simlar to “violation of A of
this section is a class B msdeneanor, if the information is

forwarded to less than 25 telephones, and it’s a class A
m sdeneanor if the information is forwarded to 25 or nore
t el ephones” be added.

1:51: 32 PM

M5. CARPENETI, in response to a question from Vice Chair
Dahl strom explained that the definition of “intent to defraud”
be inserted after line 5 on page 2. I n addition, she explained

that line 4 of page 1 be reworded to reflect this | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if this would be incorporated
into the new commttee substitute (CS)

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- February 1, 2007



VI CE CHAI R DAHLSTROM repl i ed yes.
M5. CARPENETI al so agreed.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st ated that he does not object to this.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noted that this would be conceptual
Amendnent 6.

[ Al t hough no formal notion was nmade, conceptual Anmendnent 6 was
treated as adopted.]

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out that an anendnent is needed
to delete the phrase “or cause harm?” He expl ained that
“spoofing” neans to use another persons name and phone nunber in
order to give a msinpression of who is actually calling. This
m ght be done for a variety of reasons, he said, adding that to
defraud is only one reason. He commented that this may also be
used to stalk, intimdate, or threaten. He opined that “intent
to defraud” narrows the scope of the bill.

1:54: 32 PM

M5. CARPENETI, referring to AS 11.46.990, reiterated that the
definition of “intent to defraud” is “pretty broad,” and opined
that this would cover the aforenentioned situations.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that while he has no objection to
this, he would like to ensure that no cases unintentionally
“fall between the cracks.”

MR. MOFFATT agr eed.

VI CE CHAI R DAHLSTROM stated her intention to hold the bill until
the next conmittee hearing, thus allow ng the sponsor(s) tine to
neet with nenbers to address concerns, in addition to addressing
the aforenentioned conceptual anendnents. She noted that
conceptual anmendnent 5 was not noved or adopted.

1:57:12 PM
REPRESENTATIVE LYNN, referring to Conceptual Amendnent 5,

suggested changing the mnimum for a class A m sdenmeanor from 5
to 25.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 1, 2007



VICE CHAIR DAHLSTROM reconmended incorporating this into [a
commttee substitute (CS)].

M5. CARPENETI, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, offered her understanding that the ability to obtain
phone records nekes it easier to prosecute these cases. She
said “if you have one piece of information ... that reached
1,000 phones, | don’'t know that it would be that difficult to
get the records to prove that.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that this be considered prior
to the next neeting.

VI CE CHAI R DAHLSTROM r equested that the sponsor(s) research this
issue in order to cone up with a reasonabl e nunber.

[HB 7 was held over.]
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 1:59 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 1, 2007



